
Vestavia Hills  

City Council Agenda 

August 13, 2012 

5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Dennis Anderson, Vestavia Hills Baptist Church 

4. Pledge of Allegiance 

5. Candidates, Announcements and Guest Recognition 

6. Employee of the Month 

7. Mayor's Report 

8. Councilors’ Reports 

9. Approval Of Minutes – June 21, 2012 (Meeting with the Mayor), July 19, 2012 (Special 

Called Meeting) and July 23, 2012 (Regular Meeting) 

New Business 

10. Resolution Number 4330 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Klingler’s 

Inc., D/B/A Klingler’s Bakery For The Sale Of 040 Retail Beer And 060 Retail Wine; 

Michelle Witherington, Executive 

11. Resolution Number 4331 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Summit 

Hotel TRS 087 LLC D/B/A Hilton Garden Inn Liberty Park For An 020 – Restaurant 

Retail Liquor License; Summit Hotel TRS, Inc., Executives 

12. Resolution Number 4332 - A Resolution Appointing Election Officers For The Vestavia 

Hills Municipal Election To Be Held On August 28, 2012 

13. Resolution Number 4325-A - A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4325 

Appropriating Matching Funds For ADECA Grant Entitled 2012 Recreational Trails 

Program 2
nd

 Level Application – McCallum Park Connector Trail 

14. Citizens Comments 

15. Motion For Adjournment 



Meeting with the Mayor 
June 21, 2012 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

MEETING WITH THE MAYOR 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 21, 2012 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regularly scheduled Meeting with the 
Mayor on this date at 6:00 PM following posting/publication pursuant to Alabama law.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the roll was checked with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mary Lee Rice, Council President  
      Steve Ammons, President Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce 

Linda Allison  
Jim Sharp 

 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Randy Robertson, City Manager 
 
 

The Mayor opened the meeting and welcomed the persons in attendance. 
 
The Mayor discussed with the Council several topics/updates, including but not 

limited to: 
• Various city issues were discussed. 

 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:45 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Wendy Appling 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



City Council Minutes 
June 21, 2012 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JULY 19, 2012 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in special session on this date at 4:30 PM.  
The Council President called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with 
the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Council President 

Jim Sharp 
      George Pierce 

Linda Allison  
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Greg Gilchrist, Fire Marshal 
 
 

ELECTION OF PRESIDENT PRO-TEM 
 
 Mr. Ammons explained that Ms. Rice has moved to Chattanooga.  Since he now 
moves to President of the Council, the Council now needs to elect a President Pro-Tem.  
He opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to nominate Jim Sharp as Council President Pro-Tem was made by 

Mr. Pierce and second was by Ms. Allison.  Roll call vote as follows: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the Council needed to move into Executive Session in 
order to discuss the purchase/sale of property.  He explained that the Session is estimated 
to last approximately 4 hours and asked Mr. Boone to verify that is a legal reason for an 
Executive Session.   
 
 Mr. Boone concurred and Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a motion. 



City Council Minutes 
June 21, 2012 

Page 2 
 

 
MOTION Motion for the Council to move into Executive Session for the discussion 

of purchase/sale for an estimated 60 minutes was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Sharp.  On a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 The Council exited the Chamber at 4:34 PM and entered into Executive Session.  
At 8:42 PM, they re-entered the Chamber and Mr. Ammons called the meeting back to 
order. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:50 PM was by Mr. Pierce.  Mr. Sharpe 

seconded the motion, voice vote as follows: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 Meeting adjourned at 8:50 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JULY 23, 2012 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Council President called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with 
the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Council President  
      Jim Sharp, President Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce 

Linda Allison  
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Greg Gilchrist, Fire Marshal 
      Keith Blanton, Building Official 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
 
 Invocation was given by Danny Wood, Shades Mountain Baptist Church, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUESTS 
 

• Deloye Burrell, candidate for City Council, Place Number 1, introduced himself 
and asked for support in the upcoming municipal election. 

• John Henley, candidate for City Council, Place Number 1, introduced himself and 
asked for support in the upcoming municipal election. 

• Bob Elliott, candidate for City Council, Place Number 4, introduced himself and 
asked for support in the upcoming municipal election 

• George Pierce, candidate for City Council, Place Number 4, introduced himself 
and asked for support in the upcoming municipal election. 

 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 2 
 

 
Mr. Ammons welcomed his parents Don and Maxine Ammons to the meeting. 

 
 

MAYOR’S REPORTS 
 

• The Mayor reminded everyone of the I love America Day celebration scheduled 
for August 10 at Wald Park. 

• The Mayor stated that he attended the Library in the Forest Beer and Bingo night 
which was a successful fund-raiser for the Library. 

• Mayor Zaragoza stated that the flags at all government buildings are at half staff 
by a decree of the President in memory of those slain in Aurora, Colorado and 
will remain that way until Wednesday. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Robertson detailed statistics gathered from the City’s newly renovated 
website and indicated that in 31 days, 9,337 hits were gathered on the site. 
 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• none. 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for the month of June 2012.  He read 
and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of July 9, 2012 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve them as 

presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Ms. Allison.  Voice vote as 
follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 3 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4322 

Resolution Number 4322 - A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 1459 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, Parcel ID# 39-01-1-001-002.000-RR2 And 29-36-4-007-
005.000-RR6, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-
36, Sections 11-53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of 
Alabama, And In Compliance With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The 
City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For Said Demolition To 
Be Performed By The City Of Vestavia Hills And Directing The City 
Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition 
To Be Charged Against The Land On Which The Building Or 
Structure Exists As A Municipal Lien Or Cause Such Cost To Be 
Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or Owners 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4322 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mayor Zaragoza introduced Mark Waggoner and Ben Goldman of the law firm of 
Hand Arendall, LLC.  Mayor Zaragoza gave a brief background of Ordinance Number 
2382, the City’s dangerous buildings ordinance, that details the demolition process and 
asked Mr. Goldman to explain Resolution Number 4322. 
 
 In preparation for this hearing, a packet was submitted to the Mayor and members 
of the City Council.  The packet contains 1.) the Finding of Public Nuisance, Notice and 
Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens;  2.) the Alabama Messenger Affidavit of 
Publication of Notice;  3.) printouts of thirty-six selected photographs of the conditions of 
the Vestavia Motor Lodge;  and 4.) a CD containing 299 photographs of the conditions of 
the Vestavia Motor Lodge.  A copy of the packet was also filed with the City Clerk, and 
during the hearing, a packet was admitted into evidence in support of the proposed 
demolition.  A copy of the packet will remain available for inspection in the office of the 
City Clerk. 
 
 At Mr. Goldman’s offer, the Council also received into evidence 1.) an August 6, 
2007, Property Maintenance Inspection Report;  2.) a December 23, 2009, Fire Inspection 
Report;  3.) a December 23, 2009, letter of the Jefferson County Department of Health;  
4.) a December 5, 2011, Fire Inspection Report;  5.) a December 13, 2011, Property 
Maintenance Inspection Report;  6.) a March 9, 2012, Property Maintenance Inspection 
Report;  and 7.) 2012 Assessment Records for the Jefferson County Tax Assessor for the 
Vestavia Motor Lodge.  A copy of these materials will remain available for inspection in 
the office of the City Clerk.  Mr. Goldman used these materials to outline the lengthy 
circumstances of public nuisance, structural problems, sanitary problems, vagrancy, and 
attractive nuisance that led the City’s Appropriate Municipal Officials to declare the 
Vestavia Motor Lodge a dangerous building and to seek its demolition.  Moreover, the 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 4 
 

history of the building showed that the owner of the Vestavia Motor Lodge had been 
repeatedly given notice of the building’s defective conditions and failed to make the 
necessary improvements. 
 
 The Council received testimony from Keith Blanton, Building Official and one of 
the City’s Appropriate Municipal Officials for the purpose of administering Ordinance 
Number 2382.  Mr. Blanton explained his findings from his inspections of the Vestavia 
Motor Lodge.  Based upon his inspections, Mr. Blanton opined that the Vestavia Motor 
Lodge is a danger to the health and safety of the neighborhood, and in its present state is 
a public nuisance, has structural problems, has sanitary problems, promotes vagrancy, 
and is an attractive nuisance.  Mr. Blanton confirmed his findings in the Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens, including that the 
building on the Subject Property is substantially damaged or decayed, or deteriorated 
from its original value or structure (not including the value of the land) and that the 
building on the Subject Property cannot be reasonably repaired so that it will no longer 
exist in violation of the terms of Ordinance No. 2382.  Furthermore, it is Mr. Blanton’s 
opinion that the Vestavia Motor Lodge should be demolished.  According to Mr. Blanton, 
the property owner has not made any of the necessary repairs for which notice was 
provided.  Mr. Blanton confirmed that the photographs offered into evidence fairly and 
accurately depict the conditions shown at the Vestavia Motor Lodge. 
 
 The Council received testimony from Greg Gilchrist, Fire Marshal, Battalion 
Chief, and one of the City’s Appropriate Municipal Officials for the purpose of 
administering Ordinance Number 2382.  Chief Gilchrist explained his findings from his 
inspections of the Vestavia Motor Lodge.  Based upon his inspections, Chief Gilchrist 
determined that the Vestavia Motor Lodge poses a fire hazard because the building lacks 
a functioning sprinkler system, lacks an adequate fire alarm system, and has improper fire 
separation from floor to floor.  Furthermore, it is Chief Gilchrist’s opinion that the 
Vestavia Motor Lodge is a public nuisance and should be demolished.  Chief Gilchrist 
confirmed that the photographs offered into evidence fairly and accurately depict the 
conditions shown at the Vestavia Motor Lodge. 
 
 Mr. Goldman stated that John Robbins, legal counsel for Maddox Enterprises LP, 
has filed an objection to the demolition.  Mr. Goldman asked the Council to receive the 
objection into evidence and give it due consideration. 
 
 Mr. Goldman explained the methods used to give notice to all interested parties as 
set forth in the Finding of Public Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of 
Lis Pendens executed on May 15, 2012, and as set forth in the Alabama Messenger 
Affidavit of Publication of Notice.  He indicated that the methods of service had the 
desired effect of obtaining the actual notification of the interested parties who had, in 
fact, appeared at the public hearing to voice their objections to the proposed demolition.   
Mr. Goldman gave dates of telephone calls and meetings prior to the present public 
hearing from the representatives of Maddox Enterprises LP, including John Robbins, 
Karen Maddox, Larry Maddox, Steve LaFoy, and Michael Parker. 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 5 
 

 Mr. Robbins clarified that he was present at the public hearing to represent 
Maddox Enterprises LP.  He indicated that the corporation includes of Larry Maddox, its 
Corporate Agent; Richard Maddox; Karen Maddox and Ivy Maddox (a granddaughter 
that inherited interest in the property).  He stated that all those individuals with the 
exception of Richard Maddox were present at the meeting.  Mr. Robbins stated that the 
hotel has not been in operation since 2009 and he asked Larry Maddox to explain. 
 
 Larry Maddox stated that he closed the hotel in 2009 following the death of his 
child.  He stated that he felt he could not keep up the hotel and keep his family together 
under the trying circumstances.  Mr. Maddox acknowledged several required repairs that 
the Fire Marshal and the Building Official have listed and stated that he has attempted to 
repair them as funding has become available and as his health has permitted.  He 
indicated they are working with investors for additional funding to bring the hotel to 
code. 
 
 Mr. Robbins submitted a letter from James Keeton, a local contractor with Keeton 
General Contractors, Inc., dated July 23, 2012, who offered to “provide a proposal for the 
improvements with a turn-key design-build scope of work . . . [to] bring the property up 
to the quality standards of the City of Vestavia Hills.”  However, at the time of the public 
hearing, such a plan had not yet been developed.  Mr. Maddox stated that he would like 
the opportunity to develop a plan for renovation of the Vestavia Motor Lodge. 
 
 Discussion ensued as the Councilors questioned Mr. Maddox regarding the 
photographs taken of the property and his recent work on it.  He stated that he has 
experienced health problems and tried to repair what he could and that he estimated the 
total cost of repairs would be approximately $300,000 to $400,000.  Mr. Pierce asked 
about the Health Department reports, and Mr. Maddox explained those were in 2010. 
 
 Karen Maddox provided the Council with some quotes in the amount of $50,000 
that she had collected for repairs of the stairwells.  Discussion ensued as to whether these 
were active contracts or quotes; it was established that they were quotes. 
 
 Mr. Maddox stated that he is unaware of any deficiencies in the building supports 
or posts that are leaning and unanchored.  Discussion ensued about the structural integrity 
of the building.  Mr. Maddox indicated that he has not sought a report from a structural 
engineer, but he has had a number of individuals to inspect the property and provide data. 
 
 Mr. Goldman gave closing remarks and indicated that there has been no structural 
engineering report for the building submitted, there has been no management plan to put 
in place should the property be renovated and reopened; and all repairs and quotes appear 
to be mostly cosmetic.  Steve LaFoy, who on behalf of Maddox Enterprises LP had 
previously discussed making a redevelopment proposal for the Vestavia Motor Lodge, 
was not in the audience to question regarding his findings on the integrity of the building. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 6 
 

 Iva Krukowski, 137 Maple Street, Maylene, Alabama stated that she has not been 
active in the family business but her family has been through some trying times and 
asked the Council to grant them time to have the opportunity to repair and reopen the 
hotel. 
 
 Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, stated that the property has been a 
hazard for years and asked the Council to move forward with the abatement. 
 
 There being no further comments, Mr. Ammons closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4323 

Resolution Number 4323 – A Resolution Authorizing The City To Bid Out The Cost 
Of Demolition Of The Property Described In Resolution Number 
4322 

 
MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4323 as amended was by Mr. Pierce 

and second was by Ms. Allison. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this Resolution follows up the previous Resolution 
authorizing the City to invite bids for the demolition of the property.    
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council regarding the request, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and 
asked for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2416 

Ordinance Number 2416 – Rezoning – 2665 Alta Glen Drive; Rezone From 
Jefferson County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation (Property Was Annexed In The 90s But Never 
Compatibly Rezoned); Susan Henry, Owner 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 7 
 

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2416 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Ms. Allison. 

 
 Ms. Leavings explained that this property annexed in the 90s but was never 
compatibly rezoned.  When the owner came in asking about the zoning of the property, 
she was advised to seek the compatible zoning and this is her request. 
 
 Susan Henry was present in regard to the request. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council regarding the request, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and 
asked for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2415 

Ordinance Number 2415 – Rezoning – 4240 Oakview Lane; Rezone From Vestavia 
Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills B-1, With Conditions For An Artist 
Studio; Maude Powell, Owner 

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2415 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Ms. Leavings explained that this property was recommended for rezoning to B-2 
by the Planning Commission with the stipulation that the only use allowed on the 
property was for an artist studio.  However, the owner has indicated she will be required 
to bring the building to commercial code, do some landscape buffering and remove some 
on-street parking in the front.  This will cost a good deal of money so the owner is 
appealing the request with some stipulations.  She is requesting that the Council rezone it 
to B-1 with the following stipulations which are detailed in the Ordinance:  (1) uses on 
the property are limited to prohibit convenience stores, laundry or dry cleaning 
businesses, produce markets, fast food restaurants, bars, lounges and veterinary hospitals 
or practices; (2) property lines to the rear shall be screened with a combination of privacy 
fencing and evergreen plantings; and (3) said conditions will be executed in the form of 
private restrictive covenants to be filed and recorded in the Jefferson County Office of the 
Judge of Probate and a copy filed with the Office of the City Clerk to be affixed and 
incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2415 as if written fully therein.  She stated that 
there were some objections from some residents abut portions of the property, but only 
one of them contacted her in regard to this meeting and he withdrew his objections.  She 
stated that no one from Pruitt Place contacted her regarding this proposal. 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 8 
 

 Maude Powell was present in regard to the request and answered questions from 
the Council. 
 

Mr. Boone explained conditional zoning and recommended that the Ordinance not 
be posted until the owner has filed the covenants. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council regarding the request, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and 
asked for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4326 

Resolution Number 4326 – A Resolution To Issue A Certificate Of Election To 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. As Mayor 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4326 was by Ms. Allison and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 The Mayor explained that he was unopposed in the upcoming election; therefore 
is notifying the Council in order to issue a Certificate of Election. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION – ALBERTO C. ZARAGOZA, JR. 
 
 Mr. Ammons explained that this is to adopt the Certificate of Election for Mayor 
Zaragoza for the upcoming office of Mayor, beginning November 2012.  He opened the 
floor for a motion and called for the question: 
 
MOTION Motion to adopt the Certificate of Election of Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., for 

Mayor was by Mr. Sharp.  Second was by Mr. Pierce and on a roll call 
vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 9 
 

     Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4327 

Resolution Number 4327 - A Resolution To Issue A Certificate Of Election To Jim 
Sharp As Councilor, Place Number 2 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4327 was by Ms. Allison and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 The Mayor explained that Mr. Sharp was unopposed for City Council, Place 
Number 2, in the upcoming election; therefore, he is notifying the Council to issue a 
Certificate of Election. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – abstained  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION – JIM SHARP 
 
 Mr. Ammons explained this is to adopt the Certificate of Election for Mr. Sharp 
for the upcoming office of City Council, Place Number 2, beginning November 2012.  
He opened the floor for a motion and called for the question: 
 
MOTION Motion to adopt the Certificate of Election of Jim Sharp, for City Council, 

Place Number 2, was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Ms. Allison and on a 
roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – abstained  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4328 

Resolution Number 4328 - A Resolution To Issue A Certificate Of Election To Steve 
Ammons As Councilor, Place Number 3 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4328 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 The Mayor explained that Mr. Ammons was unopposed for City Council, Place 
Number 3, in the upcoming election; therefore, he is notifying the Council to issue a 
Certificate of Election. 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 10 
 

 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – abstained 
     Motion carried. 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION – STEVE AMMONS 
 
 Mr. Ammons explained that this is to adopt the Certificate of Election for him for 
the upcoming office of City Council, Place Number 3, beginning November 2012.  He 
opened the floor for a motion and called for the question: 
 
MOTION Motion to adopt the Certificate of Election of Steve Ammons, for Council 

Place Number 3, was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Ms. Allison and on a 
roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – abstained  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4329 

Resolution Number 4329 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Execute An 
Agreement With ES&S For Voting Machines 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4329 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 The Mayor explained that this Resolution authorizes the Mayor to enter into an 
agreement with ES&S for the programming and setup of the voting machines for the 
municipal elections.  He indicated that the costs of the machines are above what the City 
paid the County for the services, but the budget should cover the expenses. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 11 
 

NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4325 

Resolution Number 4325 – A Resolution Approving Matching Funds For 2012 
Recreational Trails Program 2nd Level Application – McCallum Park 
Connector Trail 

 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a motion for unanimous consent for immediate 
consideration and action on Resolution Number 4325. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for consideration and action on Resolution 

Number 4325 was by Mr. Sharp and second was by Ms. Allison. 
 
MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4325 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Ms. Allison. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this Resolution pledges funding for the 2nd stage of 
McCallum Park.  He stated that that the estimated cost of the project is $120,000 with the 
City’s match being 50 percent or $60,000.  He indicated that the Park and Recreation 
Foundation. 
 
 Chief Rary indicated that the Police Department found no problems with the 
request. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council, he closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2417 

Ordinance Number 2417 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The 
Purchasing And Closing Of The Sale Of Real Estate 

 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a motion for unanimous consent for immediate 
consideration and action on Ordinance Number 2417. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for consideration and action on Ordinance 

Number 2417 was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Ms. Allison. 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 12 
 

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2417 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Ammons gave a brief background on the proposed Ordinance to purchase the 
“big box” store at the Vestavia Hills Plaza Shopping Center.  He explained that this came 
before the Council previously and was defeated, but some additional information was 
obtained and the Council is reconsidering it. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained the terms of the proposed contract in which Southpace 
Properties will close on the property on August 3; Planning and Zoning will hear the 
proposed resurvey to break out the big box property on August 9 and the City will 
purchase and close the sale on August 15.  Mr. Boone asked Brian Holt of Southpace to 
assign the first right of refusal on the remaining property to the City.  He indicated that 
two amendments needed to be adopted concerning the proposed Ordinance to meet the 
terms and conditions upon which the final agreement has been discussed.  The first would 
be to extend the City’s deadline to August 15 in order to close, following P&Z approval 
of a plat. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for said amendment. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Ordinance Number 2417 to move the date of closing to 

August 15 was by Mr. Sharp and second was by Ms. Allison.  Roll call 
vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 Mr. Boone explained a second amendment to assign the first right of refusal to the 
City on the remainder of the property. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Ordinance Number 2417 to allow the City first right of 

refusal on the remainder of the property was by Mr. Sharp and second was 
by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  The following individuals 
addressed the Council concerning this Ordinance:  John Henley, 2114 Shades Avenue; 
Deloye Burrell, 3273 Farrington Woods Drive; Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road 
and Bob Elliott, Riverview Cove. 
 
 An in-depth discussion ensued concerning the need to purchase and control the 
property, a pending lawsuit on the property, the possibility of relocation of the Municipal 
Center facilities, etc.  Each Councilor spoke at length about his/her opinion of the 
purchase of the property. 



City Council Minutes 
July 23, 2012, 

Page 13 
 

 
 There being no further discussion, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – no  Ms. Allison – no  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion failed. 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 

Deloye Burrell reported that they delivered some homemade goodies to the 
Cahaba Heights Fire Station and commended their work last week during the bomb scare 
in the community. 

 
Donald Harwell congratulated Mayor Zaragoza, Councilor Ammons and 

Councilor Sharp for being unopposed in the upcoming municipal election and then 
wished the other candidates luck in their campaigns. 

 
Mr. Ammons also thanked the Police and Fire Departments for the work they did 

during the crisis last week. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:30 PM was by Mr. Pierce.  Ms. Allison 

seconded the motion.  Voice vote as follows: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Ms. Allison – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4330 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR KLINGLERS INC D/B/A KLINGLERS 
BAKERY; MICHELLE WITHERINGTON, 
EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Klingler’s Inc d/b/a Klingler’s Bakery, located at 621 Montgomery 

Hwy, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 040 Retail Beer and 060 Retail Wine (on or 

off premises); Michelle Witherington, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day of August, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 













 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4331 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR SUMMIT HOTEL TRS 087 LLC D/B/A HILTON 
GARDEN INN LIBERTY PARK; SUMMIT HOTEL 
TRS, INC., EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Summit Hotel TRS 087 LLC d/b/a Hilton Garden Inn Liberty 

Park, located at 2090 Urban Center Pkwy, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise 

sale of 020 Restaurant Retail Liquor; Summit Hotel TRS, Inc., executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day August, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 















Resolution Number 4332 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4332 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING ELECTION OFFICERS 

FOR THE MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD IN THE 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA ON AUGUST 28, 
2012. 

 
 WHEREAS, a regular municipal election for the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, will be held on the 28th day of August, 2012; and 

 WHEREAS, according to Title 37, Section 34 (26), Code of Alabama, 1975, the 

municipal governing body, or a majority of them, must appoint from the qualified 

electors of respective wards or voting districts, officers to hold the election as follows:  a 

Chief Inspector and an Assistant Chief Inspector. 

 WHEREAS, the pay rates for each Chief Inspector will be at a rate of $250.00 

per day; each Assistant Chief Inspector will be at a rate of $200.00 per day; and for each 

Clerk will be at a rate of $175.00 per day.  Poll worker hours begin at 6:30 a.m. and last 

until the Chief Inspector dismisses each clerk. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, that the election officers for said election shall be as follows: 

Horizon Church 
 
Shawn Manning, Chief 
Teresa Roberts, Asst. Chief 
Mary Ann Appling 
Margaret Curry 
Sue Edfeldt 
Paul Edfeldt 
Martha Graves 
Cecelia Greer 
Barbara Howell 
Jane Mahaffey 

Audrey Cornutt 
Muzaffar Sheikh 
Joseph Anzalone 
Kay Eddins 
 
Mountaintop Community 
Church 
 
Kenneth Lundberg, Chief 
Cynthia Bartlett, Asst. Chief 
Rita Blair 
Anne Boston 



Resolution Number 4332 
Page 2 

 
Jeanell Knight 
George Luckie, Jr. 
James Medley 
Sheila Piery 
 
Town Village 
 
Sue Stapleton, Chief 
Jimmy Stapleton, Asst. Chief 
Virginia Holland 
James Holland 
Nancy Kirk 
Nadene Siniard 
Frank Bates 
VH United Methodist Church 
 
Nell Rush 
Vivian Smith 
Ann Friend 
Patricia Hamilton 
Eleanor Howze 
Sammie Leach 
Jeannie Radecke 
Sue Wills 
 
 

New Merkle 
 
Margaret Crawford 
Shane Acton 
Bartie Acton 
Bonnie Carr 
Willis Jackson 
Franklin Meredith 
Glenn Rice 
Micky Rubenstein 
Barbara Smith 
 
Liberty Park 
 
Lucy Mason, Chief 
Nanci Pate, Asst. Chief 
Jerome Billings 
Dan Harper 
Alice Harper 
William Pate 
 
Absentee 
 
Gayle England, Chief 
Ruby Denson, Asst. Chief 
Peggy Maddox 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13th day of August, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4332 

Page 3 

 

 

 

 

      APPROVED BY: 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4325-A 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MATCHING FUNDS FOR 

ADECA GRANT ENTITLED 2012 RECREATIONAL TRAILS 

PROGRAM 2
ND

 LEVEL APPLICATION – MCCALLUM PARK 

CONNECTOR TRAIL 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills proposes to have constructed recreational 

resources at McCallum Park to provide for the health and well being of the general 

public; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills intends to make application for the 

Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs for grant assistance to 

develop a connector trail along Little Shades Creek in McCallum Park (formerly known 

as Little Shades Creek Park) from the Federal Highway Administration Recreational 

Trails Program; and 

 WHEREAS, funds requested for a diverse-use trail through this Program are in 

the amount of $50,000 which is 41.7% of the proposed project costs estimated at 

$120,000 and will be used to develop a trail along Little Shades Creek; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Foundation has included 

the development of McCallum Park in the “Partners in Healthy Living” Campaign and 

has committed available funds up to $50,000 for the cash match to fulfill RTP program 

requirements and to provide for completion of the trail project; and 

 WHEREAS, the breakdown of the City match is as follows:  $5,000 in-kind 

professional services; $10,000 City labor, $5,000 volunteer labor and $50,000 City funds 

provided by the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Foundation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Vestavia Hills hold 

in reserve $50,000 which is 41.7 percent (41.7%) of the proposed project cost for the 

purpose of matching the Recreational Trails Program assistance; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event a grant is awarded, the City of 

Vestavia Hills understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all applicable 

Federal and State laws, rules and regulations. 

 

 



 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23
rd

 day of July, 2012. 

 

 

 

      Steve Ammons 

      Council President 

 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

      APPROVED BY: 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

 












	2012_0813CC_A
	2012_0621CC_MM
	2012_0719CC_M
	2012_0723CC_M
	Resolution 4330
	Resolution 4331
	Resolution 4332
	Resolution 4325-A



